
Park & Cemetery Board Preliminary- Minutes  
Respectfully Submitted by Paula Fisher, Boards & Commissions Secretary/Stenographer  
** NOTE** The minutes are not verbatim** 

 

1

PARKS & CEMETERY BOARD 
CITY OF NORTON 

 

Wednesday, March 19, 2014 
 
The Park and Cemetery Board of the City of Norton, Ohio convened for a public meeting in Council Chambers of the 
Safety Administration Building.  Chairperson Stimac called the meeting to order at 5:30p.m.  
 
ATTENDANCE: 
 

PRESENT:              Ruth Stimac, Neva Gibson, Bill Courson, Pam Dixon 
   

ABSENT:                 Lisa Merrick 
   
ALSO PRESENT:  Charlotte Whipkey, Rick Rodgers, Dennis Pierson 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

Ms. Fisher stated to the board that Ms. Pam Dixon was sworn in before the meeting.  Chairperson Stimac welcomed 
Ms. Pam Dixon to the board as a new returning member.  Chairperson Stimac stated that she would like to bring Ms. 
Dixon up to date with what the Parks & Cemetery Board was doing.  She stated that Mr. Bosley came to talk at the 
last meeting about the fields and stated that they would like to see some more fields in the city and the board was told 
that Council had taken $100,000.00 for the roads and that the board wanted to know how much was left in the 
account.   
 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  
 
Chairperson Stimac stated that the board had talked about how the baseball and softball groups were looking for more 
fields to have games and practices and they were asking the board if there was any way to have more fields.  Ms. 
Gibson stated that when the board toured the parks last year we were at Frashure Park and we looked at the 
playground equipment and came back to the administration and asked them to remove it for fear of some child getting 
injured on the equipment.  It was in very bad shape.  She also stated that the baseball field is in bad shape in the 
outfield with sink holes and is very dangerous for the children to be playing on it and would like to see it relocated 
onto the other side of the park so the baseball teams would be safer and she stated another playground put in also.  Ms. 
Gibson stated she would also like to have the softball field moved to Frashure from Loyal Oak Park and have Loyal 
Oak just for soccer so there is not a problem with having the baseball and soccer on the same field which is an 
accident waiting to happen.  She stated that would cut out the liability issue also.  Chairperson Stimac stated that Mr. 
Courson stated that when Grill School is torn down there might be a possibility that there could be some fields there.  
She stated that soccer and all the sports are a positive impact for the children and for everyone and a playground and 
we could probably have the citizens and groups help and that is one of the things that the board would like to see 
done.  Ms Gibson asked Ms. Fisher to get the costs of the playground in Columbia Woods.  Ms. Whipkey stated that if 
the board is looking at the balance of $111,000.00 that is the amount before the roof on the Community Center and the 
bathroom at the Historical House is fixed.  The estimates are not available right now.  The board was aware that was 
not the amount in the account.  Ms. Gibson asked if the Historical House and the Community Center was put in the 
parks and Ms. Whipkey stated that she had disputed that but it happened anyway.  Mr. Courson stated that he spoke to 
David Dunn and he is very open to talking about a deal with joint plans for the properties for city use and school use.  
Ms. Dixon stated that the soccer association has the money set aside for taking care of the fields and to take down the 
backstop.  She stated that there are 141 travel kids and 75 in house kids for soccer.  Council President Mr. Rodgers 
asked the board if the children pay any fees from the traveling teams for the use of the soccer fields and Chairperson 
Stimac stated that the only fees are the registration fees and that is what is called the traveling fees.  Ms. Gibson stated 
that there are Norton children on the traveling teams.  Ms. Stimac stated that they do not pay anything to use the fields 
for baseball, softball and soccer.  She also stated that the fees that the children pay are for uniforms and supplies the 
teams would need.  Mr. Rodgers asked if we charge anything for field maintenance.  Ms. Fisher stated that the only 
thing the maintenance crew does from the city is mow the fields but the associations takes care of the rest of the fields 
by seeding and new dirt.  Mr. Dennis Pierson, third ward councilman, stated that he had asked Ms. Starosta in the past 
two weeks of all the parks expenditures and he found that the general fund is paying all the maintenance and he thinks 
that some of the funds should be paid out of the parks account to cover some of the items and not out of the general 
fund and he stated that the parks are in pretty good shape and he said there is a need in the city and would like to ask 
the parks commission to use  the monies very judiciously on how they do things.  He would personally like to see the 
money stop coming out of the general fund and see the money build up in the account.  Mr. Pierson stated that it is all 
over the city and it needs to change.  Ms. Gibson made a comment about John Moss and helping with becoming a 



Park & Cemetery Board Preliminary- Minutes  
Respectfully Submitted by Paula Fisher, Boards & Commissions Secretary/Stenographer  
** NOTE** The minutes are not verbatim** 

 

2

Tree City and getting the information to have that status.  She stated that it took into account all of the trimming and 
planting, the depreciation of the equipment and wages and Mr. Moss helped to retrieve the information.  Mr. Pierson 
talked about how the money is spent and would like to find a total cost analysis of what the city is spending for the 
maintenance side and see what it is costing.  Mr. Pierson stated that he understands the parks board was upset about 
moving the money but they know that the money is the resident’s money and they need to know that we are using it 
the right way.  Ms. Gibson stated that like at the center of town with the gazebo maybe we should talk to some of the 
organizations and see if they would help out with fixing and repairing since it is the center of town and to help present 
a better picturesque area for the city.  Mr. Rodgers questioned the board if they have pursued any grants for 
playground equipment and Chairperson Stimac stated that in the past yes that is how the city received the playground 
equipment and the baseball fields in Columbia Woods but the board has not done so recently.  Ms. Gibson stated that 
she had spoken to Mr. Jeff Pritchard and he was telling her of different grants.  The board was very upset about the 
concrete pad at the Community Center and yet it was still put in and was not even brought up to the board whether to 
put it in or not.  Mr. Rodgers stated that what happened in the past is in the past and going forward they will be 
cooperating and yes we did not come to the board for the money transfer but it was an emergency time limit to do the 
transfer.  Mr. Rodgers stated that he would like the board to formulate a plan with associated costs of what they would 
like to do and getting back to grants and he stated he has a person in his ward that can do grant writing and she would 
like to do something for the city.  Ms. Dixon asked Ms. Fisher to find out if the soccer association would be able to 
use the football field in Columbia Woods Park.  There was discussion about Holiday Heights field for soccer.  The 
board spoke concerning the soccer field in Loyal Oak about the one group from Hametown church and that they used 
the field and then had a bonfire in the middle of the big field that the soccer association had to repair.  Mr. Courson 
stated that he is working with other school districts that are looking for grants and since Mr. Pritchard has been gone 
he stated that it is hard to find grants anymore and Ms. Gibson stated that if you find someone who knows how to 
write them with emphasis they are worth their weight in gold.  Mr. Pierson questioned if the board has asked the 
corporate people to see if they would be able to help in the community with things such as the parks and they stated 
that they need to go out and find that.  Mr. Courson stated that when the city lost Jeff Pritchard we lost the access to 
the small CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) which it is there but the city does not have the man power 
to apply for those grants.  Norton is not an entitlement city therefore we have to apply for a grant by grant application 
to the State of Ohio and it is called a Community Development Block Grant.  Ms. Gibson stated that the 
communication is needed to get the information to write the grants and Mr. Courson stated that the state likes to see 
the cities working with the corporations with the grants and it helps tremendously.  Ms. Gibson stated that another 
way we could do the work is in phases which would be one way to take care of the playgrounds.  Mr. Rodgers stated 
that we may need to begin as a community to work it out over five to ten years but we have to begin.  Chairperson 
Stimac stated that the safety of the children is the immediate urgency and with doing away with softball at Loyal Oak 
for the soccer groups would help.  Mr. Rodgers stated that as far as the community involvement, when he went around 
during election times he stated that a lot of people want to be involved.  Mr. Pierson stated Council does not want the 
parks board to think that Council is taking all the money but it was necessary for the roads and wondered also if 
anyone had contacted places like Little Tykes and Ms. Gibson stated that she had contacted them years ago and they 
stated they would come out and give us quotes on what we would be able to do.  There was talk about the Middle 
School baseball fields and who uses them.  Mr. Rodgers asked if anyone has met with Ms. Carr and told the board 
someone needs to talk with her and let her know what the board would like to do.  Chairperson Stimac asked Ms. 
Whipkey if the appropriations are on the list that was given to the board from the budget for the roof on the 
Community Center and the restroom at the Historical House and Ms. Whipkey stated the amounts for the work is not 
part of the money shown.  Mr. Rodgers questioned if the cost for the repairs weren’t taken out last year when they 
talked about the projects and Ms. Whipkey stated that no the cost had not been removed since they had no idea what it 
would be.  Ms. Gibson questioned if the jobs had to be bid out and Ms. Whipkey wasn’t sure with the way the rules 
are and she stated it could be proposals if it is less than $25,000.00.  Mr. Pierson stated that they need to go back and 
look at the problem with the restroom and if it is Summit Excavating that is the problem then we need to go back to 
them to fix it.  Ms. Gibson stated that she knows the service department is down on employees but the Season’s 
Greetings signs were still up in the park.  Ms. Fisher stated she would talk to Mr. Reynolds about that but with the 
weather it has been hard to get to.  Ms. Gibson stated that there is another Tree City academy in Macedonia and each 
class is $35.00.  Ms. Gibson stated that you would be trying to get information from the Finance Director and the 
Service Department and it only takes $2.00 per capita to be a Tree City.  She stated that it would be ideal for the city 
to be part of Tree City.  
 
 
 

CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES: 
 

The board reviewed the minutes of Wednesday, February 26, 2014.  Chairperson Stimac called for a motion to 
approve the minutes from February 26, 2014.  Ms. Gibson made a motion to approve the minutes as submitted and 
Mr. Courson seconded the motion.  Roll Call: Ms. Gibson – Yes, Mr. Courson – Yes, Ms. Stimac – Yes, and Ms. 
Dixon - Abstained.  The minutes were approved 3 – 0 with 1 Abstained. 
 
 



Park & Cemetery Board Preliminary- Minutes  
Respectfully Submitted by Paula Fisher, Boards & Commissions Secretary/Stenographer  
** NOTE** The minutes are not verbatim** 

 

3

 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Chairperson Stimac stated the next meeting would be Wednesday, April 16, 2014. With no further business coming 
before the Board, Chairperson Stimac adjourned the meeting at 7:00p.m. 
 

 
_______________________________________                _______________________________________ 
Parks and Cemetery Board Chairperson/or Vice-Chair       Parks & Cemetery Board Vice-Chair/or Member 

 

 
___________ 
Date: 
 

 
 
 
Final minutes approved and signed at the meeting on April 16, 2014 
and signed original is on file with the Clerk of Council. 
 


